
Board Meeting Agenda
Thursday August 4, 2011 ● 8:30 a.m. ● Kent County Commission Chambers

1. Call to Order by Chair

2. Public Comment

3. Approval of Minutes dated July 7, 2011 (attachment)

4. Finance: Report and Recommendations from the Finance Committee

a. FY 2011 Quarter 3 Finance Report (attachment)
b. FY 2010 Financial Audit – Final (attachment)
c. Draft GVMC FY 2011-2012 General Fund Budget – First Review

(attachment)

5. Strategic Initiatives: Report and Recommendations of the GVMC Task Force on
Governance, Structure and Operations – First Review

6. Transportation

a. Approval of contract with Wilbur Smith Associates, Inc. to perform a
corridor transportation study on Michigan Street in the City of Grand
Rapids

7. Legislative Advocacy

a. Report of the Legislative Committee
b. Next meeting of the GVMC Legislative Committee – 8:30 a.m., Wednesday

August 17, 2011

8. Other items of business and comments from GVMC members

9. Adjournment



Memorandum

To: Grand Valley Metropolitan Council

From: Donald J. Stypula, Executive Director

Date: July 31, 2011

Re: Agenda Items for our August 4, 2011 Board meeting

Attached are the agenda and support documents for our next GVMC Board of Directors meeting,
scheduled for 8:30 am Thursday August 4, 2011 at the Kent County Commission Chambers
in downtown Grand Rapids. Full agenda this month, focusing on financial items – including
review and discussion of the FY 2012 GVMC budget – and a discussion regarding the
recommendations from the GVMC Task Force on Governance, Structure and Operations. We
also are bringing for your consideration a prepared by the Transportation Department, and we
will give you a brief update from the Legislative Committee.

We’ll start by reviewing and accepting the attached minutes from our July 7, 2011 GVMC Board
meeting.

FINANCE: GVMC FY 2011 Q-3 FINANCE REPORT

The GVMC Finance Committee met on July 15 to review and report several items, including the
attached GVMC third quarter finance report for FY 2011. We are performing as anticipated
under the amended budget for our current fiscal year.  The only variance from budget involves
the billings for the GVMC’s Storm Water Phase II Compliance Collaborative (Water/Sewer-
NPDES). We have received payment for the program activities and work plan from all
participating agencies, but we have only been billed a portion of the program costs from our
contractor – FTCH, Inc.  Aside from that, we are right on target for the fiscal year.

Proposed Action: Review and accept the GVMC third quarter finance report for FY 2011.

FINANCE: GVMC FY 2010 FINANCIAL AUDIT – FINAL

Attached are the final GVMC Financial Audit and Single Audit Reports for FY 2010.  Recall
that our efforts to finalize these reports and financial statements was delayed due to the
uncertainty over the level of liability for Phase I of the MDOT Transportation Commission Audit
of GVMC operations from 1998-2004.



Briefing Memo for the August 4, 2011 GVMC Board Meeting ● July 31, 2011 ● Page 2

With the resolution of that portion of the Commission audit, totaling $364,924, Vredeveld-
Haefner, our financial auditors, prepared and transmitted the final audit report for our previous
fiscal year.  Page 25 of the financial statements includes a note referencing the outcome of Phase
I of the audit.  Following discussion with Doug Vredeveld, the Finance Committee voted to
report the audit to the Executive Committee and the GVMC Board with recommendation that it
be accepted.

Please note that I have included the FY 2010 financial audit reports as separate attachments.
Open and read them, but do not print these.  To help you save printing costs, I will have copies
of the audit reports for your files available at our meeting on Thursday.

Proposed Action: Review and accept the final GVMC FY 2010 financial audit.

FINANCE: DRAFT GVMC FY 2011-2012 GENERAL FUND BUDGET

I have attached for your review and consideration the GVMC FY 2011-2012 general fund
budget.   The budget is balanced and provides sufficient resources for GVMC to meet all of its
strategic goals and objectives for the full fiscal year.

FY 2011 GENERAL FUND BUDGET AT A GLANCE

Revenues Expenditures Net Revenues Over Expenditures
$2,052,039.00 $2,052,022.00 $17.00

In addition to the budget spreadsheets I have prepared a more detailed cover memo together with
the staffing model and membership dues schedule.  The REGIS budget has not yet been
approved by the REGIS Board.  When it is approved, I will schedule a telephone conference with
the Finance Committee to discuss the REGIS budget and request authorization to transmit that
budget to the Board of Directors for final approval in September.

Proposed Action: For review and discussion only.

GVMC TASK FORCE ON GOVERNANCE, STRUCTURE AND OPERATIONS:
REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS

The GVMC Task Force on Governance, Structure and Operations has completed a thorough
review of GVMC’s structure and operations, toward the goal of recommending positive changes
to GVMC’s operational procedures that yield greater value for Council members.  For your
review, I have attached a detailed briefing memo, together with specific recommendations



Briefing Memo for the August 4, 2011 GVMC Board Meeting ● July 31, 2011 ● Page 3

regarding committees, which have been reviewed and approved by the by the Executive
Committee.  In addition, General Counsel Jim Brown has reviewed the Task Force
recommendations and offered his thoughts on how we can implement these recommendations if
that is the desire of the Board of Directors.

Proposed Action: Review and discussion only.

TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT: APPROVAL OF CONTRACT FOR SERVICES
TO COMPLETE MICHIGAN STREET CORRIDOR STUDY

Staff in the GVMC Transportation Planning Department is seeking your approval of a contract
totaling $99,994.13 with Wilbur Smith Associates, Inc. to perform work associated with the
Michigan Street corridor study in the City of Grand Rapids.  Of four consulting firms
interviewed, Wilbur Smith provided the best combination of qualifications and service for the
cost.  I have attached a briefing memo, together with the draft contract, for your review.

Proposed Action: Review and approve the contract with Wilbur Smith Associates, Inc. for the
Michigan Street corridor study.

LEGISLATIVE ADVOCACY – GVMC LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE

The GVMC Legislative Committee met on July 13 and included a detailed report and Q&A
session with MTA Legislative Liaison Bill Anderson.  Bill said there are many groups –
including GVMC and the Grand Rapids Chamber – studying methods for replacing the Personal
Property Tax (PPT), which the Legislature is slated to tackle this fall.  He said, emphatically, that
Governor Snyder is not amenable to replacing the PPT with another form of business taxation.

The Committee also reviewed, in detail, GVMC’s current list of legislative priorities.
Committee members agreed that with action completed on Act 312 reforms, and final action
anticipated on August 24 on the GVMC;’s remaining governmental reforms priorities, that a
revised list of priorities is in order.  I am working with our local government advocacy partners
in Lansing to revise that list.  To accommodate vacation schedules, The GVMC Legislative
Committee will meet again at 8:30 a.m. Wednesday August 17 at the GVMC offices to
review the new list of GVMC legislative priorities and report those to the Executive Committee
and this Board for final adoption.

We are carefully monitoring debt reduction efforts in Washington.  The outcome of this gut-
wrenching dance between the two chambers of Congress and the White House will have a
significant, and potentially, long-lasting impact on counties and locals.  From federal funding for
transportation projects to Medicaid payments to federal assistance for disaster relief, these cuts



Briefing Memo for the August 4, 2011 GVMC Board Meeting ● July 31, 2011 ● Page 4

negotiated in the deal to raise the nation’s debt limit will bring challenges for county and local
officials over the next decade. I will report those impacts as they are revealed.

As always, we’re looking forward to seeing you and having a fruitful discussion.  If you have
any thoughts, comments, questions or suggestions you can reach me anytime on my cell phone at
616-450-5217, in the office at 776-7604, at home at 257-3372 or via email at
stypulad@gvmc.org.



GVMC Board Meeting Minutes 1

GRAND VALLEY METRO COUNCIL

Board Meeting

July 7, 2011

8:30 a.m.

Kent County Commission Chambers

MINUTES

1. Call to Order
The meeting was called to order at 8:35 a.m. by Chairman Jim Buck.

Members Present:
Alex Arends Alpine Township
Dale Bergman Sparta Township
Jim Buck City of Grandville
Tom Butcher Grand Valley State University
Dan Carlton Georgetown Township
Tom Fehsenfeld At-Large Member
Cindy Fox Cascade Township
Steve Grimm Cannon Township
Doyle Hayes At-Large Member
George Heartwell City of Grand Rapids
Don Hilton, Sr. Gaines Township
Denny Hoemke Algoma Township
George Meek Plainfield Township
Cy Moore Treasurer
Jack Poll City of Wyoming
Milt Rohwer City of Grand Rapids
Rick Root City of Kentwood
Martin Super Village of Sparta
Al Vanderberg Ottawa County
Rob VerHeulen City of Walker
Patrick Waterman City of Hudsonville
Chris Yonker City of Wayland
Michael Young City of Rockford

Members Absent:
Jerry Alkema Allendale Township
Chris Burns City of Cedar Springs
Daryl Delabbio Kent County



GVMC Board Meeting Minutes 2

Mike DeVries Grand Rapids Township
Brian Donovan City of East Grand Rapids
Jason Eppler City of Ionia
Rebecca Fleury Village of Middleville
Brian Harrison Caledonia Township
John Helmholdt At-Large
Carol Hennessey Kent County
Jim Holtrop Ottawa County
Elias Lumpkins, Jr. City of Grand Rapids
Robert May City of Hastings
Mick McGraw At-large Member
Jim Miedema Jamestown Township
Audrey Nevins Byron Township
David Pasquale City of Lowell
Steven Patrick City of Coopersville
Chuck Porter Courtland Township
Jim Saalfeld Kent County
Ken Snow City of Greenville
Toby VanEss Tallmadge Township
Bill VerHulst City of Wyoming
Roger Wills City of Belding

Others Present:
Andy Bowman Grand Valley Metro Council
Leon Branderhorst Grand Valley Metro Council
David Czurak Grand Rapids Business Journal
Dennis Kent MDOT
Eric Kind MDOT
Abed Itani Grand Valley Metro Council
Gayle McCrath Grand Valley Metro Council
Don Stypula Grand Valley Metro Council
Peter Varga The Rapid / ITP

2. Public Comment

None

3. Swearing in of new Board Member Steve Grimm, Cannon Township Supervisor

Kent County Clerk, Mary Hollinrake, administered the oath of office to Cannon Township
Supervisor, Steve Grimm.

4. Approval of Minutes

MOTION – To Approve the Minutes of the June 2011 GVMC Board Meeting with
Correction. MOVE – Meek. SUPPORT – Fox. MOTION CARRIED.



GVMC Board Meeting Minutes 3

5. Finance – FY 2011-2012 Transportation-MPO Unified Planning Work Program & Budget

Abed Itani reported they met with Federal Highway, FTA, and MDOT to review the
requirements for next year.  Based on that direction he created the Unified Planning Work
Program.  New activities include developing a financial planning process for the long range
transportation plan and TIP, planning and environmental linkages, freight planning, climate
change and performance measurements.  The budget was created with the assumptions that we
will have no increase in the number of staff, nor a cost of living adjustment.  The calculation of
local dues has been adjusted for the new census figures.  Salaries increased largely due to the
shifting of Land Use hours and also some step increase.

MOTION – To Approve the FY 2011-2012 Transportation-MPO Unified Planning Work
Program & Budget.  MOVE – Fehsenfeld.  SUPPORT – Hilton.  MOTION CARRIED.

6. Strategic Initiatives – Progress Report

Don Stypula reviewed his report on the strategic initiatives.  GVMC has been trying to create a
dedicated portal on the web for members to pose questions, list training, etc. The portal will
allow members to post training notices as well as requests.

Don reported on September 12 Mike Finney of the MEDC will hold a two hour conference
discussing the state’s new approach to economic development.

7. Legislative Advocacy

Legislative Committee Chair Rick Root stated there are many changes coming out of the new
administration including changes to PA 312, specifically that the financial ability of an entity
must be taken into consideration.  The Michigan business tax is being addressed as is the
personal property tax.  The question is how the revenue will be replaced.  The Governor has
pledged it will be revenue neutral, but has also pledged to not go beyond the 6% business tax.
GVMC is holding study group meetings with the Chamber of Commerce to come up with
alternatives for replacement.

Don Stypula reported the Urban Cooperation Act is being addressed so that union contract
provisions may be set aside in combined service agreements.

Public employee health care is being taken up with the latest proposal being an 80/20 employer
/ employee premium pay OR a hard cap amount.

Al Vanderberg stated a new category of participant is being created, single parent with children.
GVMC should try to get this changed as it will be difficult to implement because HR systems
are not currently set up to track that category.



GVMC Board Meeting Minutes 4

Rick Root reported on his activities with One Kent.  He has been part of the discussion group
along with others.  Although he may disagree with the topic, he feels it is important to be part of
the dialogue.

George Heartwell stated the original discussion group consisted of six members appointed by
Sandy Frost-Parrish and six members appointed by him. Discussion broke off with Kent County
and they pulled their participants from the group.  Unfortunately, that took many communities
out of the dialogue.  Hopefully we can start again with a new strategy which will keep the
dialogue going for a year to a year and a half, and convince One Kent not to introduce
legislation until then. One Kent was introduced without vetting it through the community.  By
pulling out of the dialogue, it is recreating the same situation.  It is very important to continue
the dialogue.

Don Hilton reported that shortly 21 townships will have passed a resolution expressing
displeasure for having been left out of the talks in the beginning.

Milt Rohwer said he hopes the negative feelings caused by this initiative to consolidate
governments do not deter discussions on consolidation of services.

Rick Root stated his concern is with isolation and cautions members on their reactions and
wording of resolutions to prevent exclusion.

Steve Grimm questioned if the members of the discussion group are representing themselves, or
if they feel bound to work under the parameters of the governments they are from.

Rick Root stated it is not inappropriate to support the position of their governing bodies, but the
group is not a governing body of itself and it is important to stay included in the study
committee.

George Heartwell said we need to chart a new path.  When Kent County pulled out, townships
were no longer involved, which crippled the conversation.

Rob VerHeulen said he was concerned with the process and that the Old Kent initiative has
given consolidation and cooperation a bad name.  We need to go back to the beginning and start
with a new process, think it through and touch all the bases in the new discussion to make sure
no one is left out.

Don Stypula stated he would like to bring this topic to the Regional Cooperation Committee.
He will determine a venue and have a good discussion.  Don will coordinate with George
Heartwell.



GVMC Board Meeting Minutes 5

8. Transportation Department Amendments to the GVMC FY 2011-2014 Transportation
Improvement Program for ITP the Rapid, the City of Hudsonville, Kent County Road
Commission, MDOT, and Transportation Staff.

MOTION – To Approve the Amendments to the GVMC FY 2011-2014 TIP.  MOVE –
Hilton.  SUPPORT – VerHeulen.  MOTION CARRIED.

9. Adjournment – 9:50 a.m.

MOTION – To Adjourn.  MOVE – Meek.  SUPPORT – Super. MOTION CARRIED.



GVMC FY 10-11 Revenue\Expense Report - June 30, 2011

07/30/2011

Activitiy Prior  YTD Total YTD %
Expended Budget Expended Unexpended
FY 09-10 FY 10-11 FY 10-11 FY 10-11

Revenues:
Revenues $1,326,484.46 $2,330,626.00 $1,614,975.04 30.71%

 
Expenditures:  
GVMC Board $1,432.00 $2,200.00 $1,331.05 39.50%
Administration $232,950.50 $317,453.00 $223,278.39 29.67%
Pav  Manage Vehicle $77,068.72 $140,990.00 $92,182.20 34.62%
Transportation $547,618.24 $1,180,035.00 $737,479.01 37.50%
Lower Grd Watershed $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
Planning & Strategic Init. $192,100.40 $252,715.00 $176,272.07 30.25%
Rogue River $122.97 $500.00 $0.00 0.00%
Special Services $253,422.45 $429,861.00 $211,065.48 50.90%

 
Total $1,304,715.28 $2,323,754.00 $1,441,608.20 37.96%

Net Rev. over  Exp. $21,769.18 $6,872.00 $173,366.84  



GVMC FY 10-11 Revenue\Expense Report - June 30, 2011

07/30/2011

Fund: General
Depart: REVENUES

 Activitiy Prior  YTD Total YTD %
Acct No. Activitiy Receipted Budget Receipted Unexpended

 FY 09-10 FY 10-11 FY 10-11 FY 10-11
Dues

GVMC $245,875.00 $249,507.00 $250,875.00 -0.55%
Transportation $153,056.00 $199,256.00 $201,923.00 -1.34%
Sub total $398,931.00 $448,763.00 $452,798.00 -0.90%

 
Transportation  

PL 112 $398,974.50 $675,837.00 $450,603.51 33.33%
Section 5303 $112,994.02 $193,445.00 $121,600.63 37.14%
CMAQ $12,148.70 $125,069.00 $66,888.11 46.52%
SPR $0.00 $75,000.00 $0.00 0.00%
STP $29,073.12 $185,000.00 $55,180.00 70.17%
Trans. Needs Assess. Fds $0.00 $128,550.00 $128,538.61 0.00%
Michigan Transp. Fds $13,264.02 $19,907.00 $5,468.50 0.00%
Westrain $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
Sub total $566,454.36 $1,402,808.00 $828,279.36 40.96%

 
Reimbursements  

Contributions $0.00 $7,000.00 $12,261.96 0.00%
Cont. - Rogue River $0.00 $500.00 $50.00 90.00%
REGIS-Direct $0.00 $6,000.00 $0.00 100.00%
Pave. Manage Survey $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
LGROW-Land Use Serv $0.00 $8,712.00 $8,712.00 0.00%
Land Use Services $12,682.03 $1,882.00 $1,882.00 0.00%
Local Participation Fee $0.00 $0.00 $15,974.21 0.00%
Data Collection $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
Local Match-Transit Sty $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
Sales-Materials, Etc. $0.00 $100.00 $73.65 26.35%
Water/Sewer $220,802.93 $177,761.00 $200,356.00 -12.71%
Events-Grow Comm. $9,375.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
Events-Regular $3,360.00 $6,000.00 $2,155.00 64.08%
Sub total $246,219.96 $207,955.00 $241,464.82 -16.11%

 
Grants  

  
UCB - Lower Grand $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
DNR/DEQ $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
MDEQ-LGR Storm Educ $1,821.11 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
MDEQ-LGR-WS Init. $100,090.27 $0.00 ($513.39) 0.00%
EPA-Haz Mater. & Petrol. $8,237.94 $269,100.00 $91,840.62 65.87%
PAL - Land Use $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
Sub total $110,149.32 $269,100.00 $91,327.23 66.06%

 
Interest $4,729.82 $2,000.00 $1,105.63 44.72%

 
 

Total $1,326,484.46 $2,330,626.00 $1,614,975.04 30.71%



GVMC FY 10-11 Revenue\Expense Report - June 30, 2011

07/30/2011

Fund: General
Depart: GVMC Board

Prior  YTD Total YTD %
Acct No. Activitiy Expended Budget Expended Unexpended

FY 09-10 FY 10-11 FY 10-11 FY 10-11
810.000 Meeting Exp $1,432.00 $2,200.00 $1,331.05 39.50%

Total $1,432.00 $2,200.00 $1,331.05 39.50%

Fund: General
Depart: Administration

  Prior  YTD Total YTD %
Acct No. Activitiy Expended Budget Expended Unexpended

FY 09-10 FY 10-11 FY 10-11 FY 10-11
702.000 Salaries $143,678.74 $197,460.00 $147,716.33 25.19%
712.100 Social Security Tax $8,936.03 $12,243.00 $9,586.83 21.70%
712.200 Medicare Tax $2,147.81 $2,864.00 $2,269.26 20.77%
712.300 State Unemployment Tax $609.37 $610.00 $676.29 -10.87%
712.500 Health/Dental Insurance $13,405.35 $24,235.00 $13,818.27 42.98%
712.600 Life/Long Term Disb. Ins. $1,952.20 $2,631.00 $2,171.20 17.48%
712.700 Parking $1,437.50 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
712.800 Pension Plan Expense $13,882.98 $17,775.00 $14,275.40 19.69%
726.000 Office Supplies $1,377.80 $2,000.00 $866.63 56.67%
726.200 Postage $506.89 $1,000.00 $180.00 82.00%
801.100 Audit $2,600.00 $3,100.00 $2,410.00 22.26%
801.200 Legal Services $3,392.50 $5,500.00 $3,080.50 43.99%
801.400 Contractual Serv $11,312.75 $0.00 $79.75 0.00%
805.000 Adv/Legal Notice $887.74 $1,000.00 $703.80 29.62%
810.000 Meeting Exp $6,430.72 $10,000.00 $4,020.57 59.79%
815.000 Insurance $503.92 $2,500.00 $559.08 77.64%
820.000 Dues and Sub $1,140.00 $1,750.00 $845.00 51.71%
825.000 Professional Dev $621.61 $5,000.00 $125.00 97.50%
860.000 Mileage $4,400.30 $7,300.00 $5,115.37 29.93%
900.100 Printing $0.00 $400.00 $0.00 100.00%
920.100 Electricity $568.58 $1,200.00 $640.40 46.63%
920.200 Telephone $2,621.75 $3,300.00 $2,493.55 24.44%
930.000 Repairs and Maint $271.06 $1,000.00 $215.24 78.48%
940.100 Equipment Rent $832.22 $1,200.00 $835.02 30.42%
940.200 Rent $8,960.46 $12,835.00 $10,538.09 17.90%
955.000 Misc $472.22 $550.00 $56.81 89.67%

 
Total $232,950.50 $317,453.00 $223,278.39 29.67%

Fund: General
Depart: Pavement Management Vehicle

  Prior  YTD Total YTD %
Acct No. Activitiy Expended Budget Expended Unexpended

FY 09-10 FY 10-11 FY 10-11 FY 10-11
738.000 Other Supplies $278.67 $1,500.00 $287.83 80.81%
738.500 Other-Software $0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 100.00%
815.000 Insurance $0.00 $9,300.00 $0.00 100.00%
825.000 Professional Devel. $0.00 $2,500.00 $300.00 88.00%
850.000 Vehicle Storage $0.00 $600.00 $0.00 100.00%
881.000 Gas, Oil & Grease $316.11 $3,000.00 $303.83 89.87%
920.200 Telephone $3,238.60 $4,100.00 $3,028.11 26.14%
931.000 Vehicle Repair & Maint. $0.00 $31,000.00 $23,162.37 25.28%
994.000 Loan Repayment $65,076.82 $84,860.00 $62,229.46 26.67%
995.000 Interest $8,158.52 $3,130.00 $2,870.60 8.29%

  
Total $77,068.72 $140,990.00 $92,182.20 34.62%



GVMC FY 10-11 Revenue\Expense Report - June 30, 2011

07/30/2011

Fund: General
Depart: Transportation

  Prior  YTD Total YTD %
Acct No. Activitiy Expended Budget Expended Unexpended

FY 09-10 FY 10-11 FY 10-11 FY 10-11
702.000 Salaries $305,232.87 $477,035.00 $316,608.25 33.63%
712.100 Social Security Tax $18,797.68 $29,580.00 $19,921.06 32.65%
712.200 Medicare Tax $4,526.63 $6,925.00 $4,659.02 32.72%
712.300 State Unemployment Tax $1,631.57 $2,250.00 $2,075.51 7.76%
712.500 Health/Dental Insurance $69,045.82 $98,400.00 $67,044.33 31.87%
712.600 Life/Long Term Disb.  Ins. $5,128.20 $6,410.00 $5,189.30 19.04%
712.700 Parking $8.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
712.800 Pension Plan Expense $28,367.76 $40,800.00 $30,002.73 26.46%
726.000 Office Supplies $3,508.74 $8,000.00 $2,986.25 62.67%
726.200 Postage $2,393.24 $3,000.00 $570.00 81.00%
801.100 Audit $6,125.00 $6,250.00 $5,500.00 12.00%
801.300 Professional Fees $0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 100.00%
801.400 Contractual Serv $62,215.28 $400,150.00 $230,501.65 42.40%
805.000 Adv/Legal Notice $1,815.89 $3,750.00 $1,423.26 62.05%
810.000 Meeting Exp $4,292.04 $8,000.00 $2,738.60 65.77%
815.000 Insurance $980.72 $3,500.00 $1,174.09 66.45%
820.000 Dues and Sub $0.00 $2,000.00 $958.50 52.08%
825.000 Professional Dev $120.00 $9,000.00 $2,806.57 68.82%
860.000 Mileage $4,169.03 $18,000.00 $4,502.53 74.99%
900.100 Printing $0.00 $1,000.00 $458.95 54.11%
920.100 Electricity $1,393.51 $2,000.00 $1,566.49 21.68%
920.200 Telephone $4,008.79 $5,600.00 $4,053.04 27.62%
930.000 Repairs and Maint $217.37 $2,500.00 $653.78 73.85%
940.100 Equipment Rent $1,664.54 $3,500.00 $2,191.74 37.38%
940.200 Rent $21,019.95 $31,385.00 $25,696.66 18.12%
980.100 Office Equipment $955.61 $10,000.00 $4,196.70 58.03%

 
Total $547,618.24 $1,180,035.00 $737,479.01 37.50%

 



GVMC FY 10-11 Revenue\Expense Report - June 30, 2011

07/30/2011

Fund: General
Depart: Planning & Strategic Init.

  Prior  YTD Total YTD %
Acct No. Activitiy Expended Budget Expended Unexpended

FY 09-10 FY 10-11 FY 10-11 FY 10-11
702.000 Salaries $114,068.77 $165,024.00 $114,487.54 30.62%
712.100 Social Security Tax $7,042.67 $10,233.00 $7,086.27 30.75%
712.200 Medicare Tax $1,647.11 $2,394.00 $1,657.26 30.77%
712.300 State Unemployment Tax $427.31 $522.00 $521.99 0.00%
712.500 Health/Dental Insurance $20,129.60 $26,700.00 $21,849.40 18.17%
712.600 Life/Long Term Disb. Ins. $1,796.60 $2,250.00 $1,796.60 20.15%
712.800 Pension Plan Expense $10,389.69 $14,855.00 $10,353.94 30.30%
726.000 Office Supplies $562.36 $750.00 $184.28 75.43%
726.200 Postage $798.03 $1,000.00 $140.00 86.00%
801.400 Contractual Serv $12,862.35 $1,882.00 $1,279.75 0.00%
810.000 Meeting Exp $65.09 $500.00 $33.37 93.33%
810.010 Growing Com. Confer. $6,201.80 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
815.000 Insurance $385.32 $2,000.00 $389.34 80.53%
820.000 Dues and Sub $878.00 $1,000.00 $380.00 62.00%
825.000 Professional Dev $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
860.000 Mileage $433.27 $1,500.00 $423.17 71.79%
900.100 Printing $0.00 $500.00 $0.00 0.00%
920.100 Electricity $658.26 $1,100.00 $741.48 32.59%
920.200 Telephone $2,787.33 $3,650.00 $2,138.34 41.42%
930.000 Repairs and Maint $69.55 $700.00 $126.29 81.96%
940.100 Equipment Rental $963.78 $1,300.00 $521.86 59.86%
940.200 Rent $9,933.51 $14,855.00 $12,161.19 18.13%

Total $192,100.40 $252,715.00 $176,272.07 30.25%

Fund: General
Depart: Rogue River

  Prior  YTD Total YTD %
Acct No. Activitiy Expended Budget Expended Unexpended

FY 09-10 FY 10-11 FY 10-11 FY 10-11
810.000 Meeting Expense $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
900.100 Printing $122.97 $500.00 $0.00 100.00%

 
Total $122.97 $500.00 $0.00 100.00%

Fund: General
Depart: SPECIAL SERVICES

  Prior  YTD Total YTD %
Acct No. Activitiy Expended Budget Expended Unexpended

FY 09-10 FY 10-11 FY 10-11 FY 10-11
801.022 Other-NPDES $111,055.48 $177,761.00 $104,862.16 41.01%
801.025 Oth.-Lower Grd-E.Coli $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
801.048 Other-LGR Org Wtsd Init $111,980.65 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
801.045 Other-LGR St Wat Educ $8,344.28 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
801.056 Other-EPA Haz Mat & Pet $22,042.04 $252,100.00 $106,203.32 57.87%
810.000 Meeting Exp $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

 
Total $253,422.45 $429,861.00 $211,065.48 50.90%





MEMORANDUM

TO: Grand Valley Metropolitan Council

FROM: Donald J. Stypula, Executive Director

DATE: July 17, 2011

RE: Draft GVMC FY 2011-2012 General Fund Budget

Attached for your review and consideration is the draft of the GVMC general fund budget for Fiscal
Year 2011-2012. The GVMC Finance Committee met on July 15 to review and approve this is
balanced budget for the entire fiscal year that utilizes revenues from GVMC general fund dues,
transportation allocations, and project-specific grants to fund the myriad activities of the Council’s
Planning and Strategic Initiatives, Transportation and Administration Departments through September
30, 2012.

FY 2011 GENERAL FUND BUDGET AT A GLANCE

Revenues Expenditures Net Revenues Over Expenditures
$2,052,039.00 $2,052,022.00 $17.00

This GVMC general fund budget reflects general membership dues calculated using population figures
from the 2010 decennial census. I have attached the spreadsheet with the FY 2012 dues structure for
your review.

Employee health care costs are projected to rise eight (8) percent. And, for or the third consecutive
fiscal year, the general fund budget includes no cost-of-living adjustments in employee compensation
within the Administration, Transportation and Planning and Strategic Initiatives departments.

We have worked diligently across all departments to carefully monitor costs and reduce expenditures.
We also have leveraged – to the maximum extent possible – our federal transportation MPO
allocations to properly fund the Council’s administrative operations together with those of the
Planning and Strategic Initiatives Department that are directly associated with our transportation
planning activities.



GVMC FY 2012 General Fund Budget Memo
July 17, 2011
Page 2
__________________

BUDGET ALIGNS WITH GVMC’S STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES

This budget includes sufficient resources to support GVMC’s strategic goals, objectives and initiatives
for the entire fiscal year.  I have included full year funding for two staff professionals in the Planning
and Strategic Initiatives Department tasked, among other duties, with assisting communities in
developing multi-jurisdictional cost-sharing agreements; monitoring and analyzing emerging issues
and trends and assisting member-counties and communities to understand and manage those issues;
monitoring – through GVMC’s web-based communication portal – the training needs of member
communities and coordinating members’ training opportunities.

With this budget, we have developed separate cost centers for both regional planning services and
strategic initiatives.  Regional planning services includes nearly 1,000 hours of planning work
associated with transportation planning, together continued work on the brownfields study and multi-
jurisdictional land use/economic development planning activities within the Division Avenue corridor

With respect to our goal of encouraging collaborative service sharing, we have sufficient resources in
this budget for staff to assist GVMC communities in exploring service-sharing agreements on a sub-
regional scale and examining the potential for a sub-regional training for incident commanders and
firefighters at multiple departments.  To address the anticipated growth in interest for these two
elements of GVMC’s strategic initiatives, we are engaging various private and philanthropic funding
sources to help GVMC meet the demand for these services.

The budget also supports our on-going collaborative initiatives with the Right Place, Inc., the Grand
Rapids Area Chamber and other metro area Chambers, the Barry County Chamber and other private
sector partners to promote regional economic development. We are also working with Kent County,
MDOT, and the cities of Grand Rapids, Kentwood and Wyoming to develop sustainable land use and
transportation plans that encourage economic development along the Division Avenue corridor.

Not reflected in this budget, but a critical component of our ability to achieve our strategic objectives,
is a twenty hour per week GVSU Graduate Assistant from the GVSU School of Public, Non-Profit and
Health Care Administration.  This individual’s stipend and tuition are paid in-full by Grand Valley
State University. This person is tasked with assisting GVMC professional staff in achieving all of the
Metro Council’s strategic goals.

MONITORING COSTS AND CUTTING EXPENDITURES

To ensure that we maintain financial health long into the future, we continually work at a staff-wide
level to limit expenditures and reduce costs, while we aggressively pursue new sources of grant



GVMC FY 2012 General Fund Budget Memo
July 17, 2011
Page 3
__________________

revenues for projects that benefit GVMC-member counties and communities. Over the past several
years, GVMC Administration has been very diligent in working with our staff and Priority Health –
our health insurance provider – to hold down employee health care costs. Historically, GVMC’s
health insurance costs have been held to a minimum because each year, as we prepare the next fiscal
year budget, we take steps to modify GVMC’s employee health insurance plan to control costs.  Over
the past several fiscal years, these steps included:

 Changing insurance carriers from Blue Cross to Priority Health to achieve cost savings
 Industry change to an age-based rating system for employees resulted in a 15% decline in

GVMC’s health insurance premiums by.
 Offering employees the option of waving GVMC-provided health benefits in exchange for a

stipend equal to one-half the premium value. This has resulted in significant savings for GVMC by
cutting the effective per person rate to $718/month.  By enabling this option for employees, we
were able to switch to the less-costly age-based premium rate.

 Increasing prescription co-pay for employees.
 Excluding insurance coverage for certain prescriptions
 Increasing employee co-pay on name brand prescriptions
 Increasing employee office visit co-pay
 Decreasing hospitalization and diagnostic coverage 80/20 up to $800/$2400 out of pocket.
 GVMC dropped its vision coverage, mitigating the increase in insurance rates by approximately

2%.
 GVMC has no legacy costs because it has never offered health insurance coverage to retirees
 There are also no legacy costs associated with retirement benefits because the Metro Council has,

since its founding, offered employees a 401 K-style, defined contribution retirement savings
system provided by the ICMA Retirement Corporation.

Following our discussions with Priority Health, we will make additional downward adjustments in
employee coverage and we anticipate limiting the increase in premiums to eight-percent over the
current fiscal year.

FUND RAISING

Together with the professionals in our Transportation and Planning and Strategic Initiatives
Departments, I meet on a regular basis with representatives of local, state and regional foundations,
representatives of the Governor’s office and our state legislators, institutions of higher education, and
other groups to seek funding for on-going regional activities that support our strategic goals and
initiatives.  Working with a detailed matrix that identifies specific projects outlined in our strategic
plan and potential funding sources, we are continually searching out, identifying and pursuing grants,
gifts, work contracts and other sources of funding.



GVMC FY 2012 General Fund Budget Memo
July 17, 2011
Page 4
__________________

FY 2012 REGIS AGENCY BUDGET

The REGIS Executive Board and Board of Directors have been developing new membership and
services agreements over the past several months.  Based on those agreements, REGIS Director Dr.
Dharmesh Jain has assembled a first draft that will be reviewed by REGIS Board members later this
week.  As soon as the REGIS budget is adopted by the full REGIS Board I will bring that to you at our
August meeting for your review and concurrence.

If you have any thoughts, comments, questions or suggestions, or if I can be of further assistance, you
can reach me anytime on my cell phone at 616-450-4217, in the office at 776-7604, at home at
2573372 or via email at stypulad@gvmc.org.



GVMC FY 11-12  BUDGET

07/30/2011

Summary  

Activitiy Prior Year Approved Projected Proposed
Actual Budget Actual Budget

FY 09-10 FY 10-11 FY 10-11 FY 11-12
Revenues:
Revenues $1,843,910.20 $2,330,626.00 $2,109,627.00 $2,052,039.00

Expenditures:
GVMC Board $1,678.88 $2,200.00 $1,850.00 $2,200.00
Administration $339,329.70 $317,453.00 $316,713.70 $340,545.00
Pavement Manage. Veh. $130,263.49 $140,990.00 $126,240.00 $48,800.00
Transportation $1,179,264.04 $1,180,035.00 $996,417.70 $1,152,411.00
Rogue River $122.97 $500.00 $75.00 $500.00
Regional Planning Services $313,565.96 $252,715.00 $247,496.00 $187,116.00
Strategic Initiatives $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $64,689.00
Special Services $338,547.37 $429,861.00 $416,356.00 $255,761.00

Total $2,302,772.41 $2,323,754.00 $2,105,148.40 $2,052,022.00

Net Rev. over  Exp. ($458,862.21) $6,872.00 $4,478.60 $17.00



GVMC FY 11-12  BUDGET

07/30/2011

Acct No. Activitiy Prior Year Approved Projected Proposed
Actual Budget Actual Budget

 FY 09-10 FY 10-11 FY 10-11 FY 11-12
Dues

GVMC $247,008.00 $249,507.00 $250,875.00 $260,939.00
Transportation $152,246.00 $199,256.00 $201,923.00 $188,696.00
Sub total $399,254.00 $448,763.00 $452,798.00 $449,635.00

Transportation
PL 112 $592,653.88 $675,837.00 $661,000.00 $795,891.00
Section 5303 $151,294.45 $193,445.00 $160,000.00 $222,842.00
CMAQ $64,956.99 $125,069.00 $75,000.00 $81,293.00
SPR $0.00 $75,000.00 $60,000.00 $0.00
Trans. Needs Assess. Fds $47,846.00 $128,550.00 $128,550.00 $0.00
MTF $15,201.16 $19,907.00 $18,000.00 $20,631.00
STP $130,471.26 $185,000.00 $70,000.00 $149,786.00
Sub total $1,002,423.74 $1,402,808.00 $1,172,550.00 $1,270,443.00

Reimbursements
Contrib.-Clean Air $12,500.00 $7,000.00 $12,200.00 $10,000.00
Contrib.-Bike Summit $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Misc.  Sales, Etc. $150.03 $100.00 $103.00 $100.00
Cont. Rogue River $0.00 $500.00 $50.00 $500.00
REGIS-Indirect $0.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00
LGROW-Land Use Serv. $8,712.00 $8,712.00 $8,700.00
Land Use Services $10,800.00 $1,882.00 $1,882.00 $0.00
Data Collection $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $21,000.00
Local Participation Fee $7,104.00 $0.00 $15,974.00 $12,400.00
Water/Sewer-NPDES $187,750.93 $177,761.00 $200,356.00 $177,761.00
Events-Growing Comm $9,375.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Events $4,020.00 $6,000.00 $3,500.00 $6,000.00
Sub total $231,699.96 $207,955.00 $248,777.00 $242,461.00

Grants
 
MDEQ-L.G.R.-Storm Educ $9,613.87 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
MDEQ-L.G.R.-WS Inititives $135,131.11 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
EPA-Haz Mater. & Petrol. $59,443.88 $269,100.00 $233,502.00 $88,000.00

Sub total $204,188.86 $269,100.00 $233,502.00 $88,000.00

Interest $6,343.64 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $1,500.00

Total $1,843,910.20 $2,330,626.00 $2,109,627.00 $2,052,039.00

stypulad
Typewritten Text
Revenues



GVMC FY 11-12  BUDGET

07/30/2011

Fund: General
Depart: GVMC Board

Prior Year Approved Projected Proposed
Acct No. Activitiy Actual Budget Actual Budget

FY 09-10 FY 10-11 FY 10-11 FY 11-12
810.000 Meeting Exp $1,678.88 $2,200.00 $1,850.00 $2,200.00

Total $1,678.88 $2,200.00 $1,850.00 $2,200.00

Fund: General
Depart: Administration

Acct No. Activitiy Prior Year Approved Projected Proposed
Actual Budget Actual Budget

FY 09-10 FY 10-11 FY 10-11 FY 11-12
702.000 Salaries $204,961.65 $197,460.00 $213,130.00 $221,257.00
712.100 Social Security Tax $12,816.31 $12,243.00 $13,214.00 $13,719.00
712.200 Medicare Tax $3,055.28 $2,864.00 $3,091.00 $3,499.00
712.300 State Unemployment Tax $609.37 $610.00 $677.00 $676.00
712.500 Health/Dental Insurance $17,153.17 $24,235.00 $18,000.00 $26,211.00
712.600 Life/Long Term Disb. Ins $2,342.64 $2,631.00 $2,615.00 $2,804.00
712.700 Parking $1,421.50 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
712.800 Pension Plan Expense $19,681.60 $17,775.00 $19,181.70 $19,914.00
726.000 Office Supplies $1,867.40 $2,000.00 $1,250.00 $1,500.00
726.200 Postage $781.89 $1,000.00 $800.00 $1,000.00
801.100 Audit $2,600.00 $3,100.00 $2,500.00 $2,800.00
801.200 Legal Services $21,914.50 $5,500.00 $4,000.00 $4,500.00
801.400 Contractual Serv $11,312.75 $0.00 $100.00 $0.00
805.000 Adv/Legal Notice $1,040.15 $1,000.00 $950.00 $1,000.00
810.000 Meeting Exp $8,520.53 $10,000.00 $7,000.00 $8,000.00
815.000 Insurance $2,584.77 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,600.00
820.000 Dues and Sub $1,140.00 $1,750.00 $1,100.00 $1,250.00
825.000 Professional Dev $1,594.65 $5,000.00 $750.00 $2,000.00
860.000 Mileage $5,672.55 $7,300.00 $6,900.00 $7,000.00
900.100 Printing $0.00 $400.00 $0.00 $400.00
920.100 Electricity $783.49 $1,200.00 $875.00 $950.00
920.200 Telephone $3,688.33 $3,300.00 $3,400.00 $3,500.00
930.000 Repairs and Maint $1,252.44 $1,000.00 $300.00 $1,000.00
940.100 Equipment Rent $1,111.55 $1,200.00 $1,150.00 $1,200.00
940.200 Rent $10,874.76 $12,835.00 $12,730.00 $13,215.00
955.000 Misc $548.42 $550.00 $500.00 $550.00

Total $339,329.70 $317,453.00 $316,713.70 $340,545.00

Fund: General
Depart: Pavement Management Vehicle

Acct No. Activitiy Prior Year Approved Projected Proposed
Actual Budget Actual Budget

FY 09-10 FY 10-11 FY 10-11 FY 11-12
738.000 Other Supplies $287.43 $1,500.00 $400.00 $900.00
738.050 Other-Software $0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 $1,000.00
815.000 Insurance $5,740.01 $9,300.00 $6,500.00 $7,000.00
825.000 Professional Develope $0.00 $2,500.00 $500.00 $2,500.00
850.000 Vehicle Storage $0.00 $600.00 $600.00 $600.00
881.000 Gas, Grease & Oil $967.15 $3,000.00 $1,200.00 $1,500.00
920.200 Telephone $4,132.78 $4,100.00 $4,050.00 $4,300.00
931.000 Vehicle Repair & Maint. $21,489.00 $31,000.00 $25,000.00 $31,000.00
994.000 Loan Repayment $87,571.91 $84,860.00 $84,860.00 $0.00
995.000 Interest $10,075.21 $3,130.00 $3,130.00 $0.00

Total $130,263.49 $140,990.00 $126,240.00 $48,800.00

 
 



GVMC FY 11-12  BUDGET

07/30/2011

Fund: General
Depart: Transportation

Acct No. Activitiy Prior Year Approved Projected Proposed
Actual Budget Actual Budget

FY 09-10 FY 10-11 FY 10-11 FY 11-12
702.000 Salaries $435,918.55 $477,035.00 $460,000.00 $475,616.00
712.100 Social Security Tax $27,005.82 $29,580.00 $28,520.00 $29,490.00
712.200 Medicare Tax $6,446.29 $6,925.00 $6,670.00 $6,897.00
712.300 State Unemployment Tax $1,631.57 $2,250.00 $2,076.00 $2,338.00
712.500 Health/Dental Insurance $83,703.02 $98,400.00 $80,475.00 $105,460.00
712.600 Life/Long Term Disabiltiy $6,153.84 $6,410.00 $6,230.00 $6,410.00
712.700 Parking $13.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
712.800 Pension Plan Expense $40,429.16 $40,800.00 $41,400.00 $41,225.00
726.000 Office Supplies $4,072.40 $8,000.00 $4,000.00 $6,000.00
726.200 Postage $3,011.79 $3,000.00 $2,200.00 $3,500.00
801.100 Audit $6,125.00 $6,250.00 $5,500.00 $6,200.00
801.300 Professional Fees $0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 $1,000.00
801.400 Contractual Serv $143,465.28 $400,150.00 $290,000.00 $381,500.00
805.000 Adv/Legal Notice $2,109.14 $3,750.00 $2,200.00 $3,750.00
810.000 Meeting Exp $5,160.15 $8,000.00 $3,500.00 $6,000.00
815.000 Insurance $4,282.02 $3,500.00 $3,600.00 $4,500.00
820.000 Dues and Sub $0.00 $2,000.00 $1,100.00 $2,000.00
825.000 Professional Dev $120.00 $9,000.00 $3,500.00 $6,000.00
860.000 Mileage $5,569.03 $18,000.00 $8,000.00 $18,000.00
900.100 Printing $0.00 $1,000.00 $600.00 $1,000.00
920.100 Electricity $1,901.08 $2,000.00 $2,100.00 $2,100.00
920.200 Telephone $5,348.87 $5,600.00 $5,450.00 $5,600.00
930.000 Repairs and Maint $1,594.20 $2,500.00 $1,100.00 $2,000.00
940.100 Equipment Rent $2,223.26 $3,500.00 $2,950.00 $3,500.00
940.200 Rent $25,540.83 $31,385.00 $31,050.00 $32,325.00
955.000 Miscellaneous $364,924.13
980.100 Office Equipment $2,515.61 $10,000.00 $4,196.70 $0.00

Total $1,179,264.04 $1,180,035.00 $996,417.70 $1,152,411.00

Fund: General
Depart: Rogue River

Acct No. Activitiy Prior Year Approved Projected Proposed
Actual Budget Actual Budget

FY 09-10 FY 10-11 FY 10-11 FY 11-12
900.100 Printing $122.97 $500.00 $75.00 $500.00

Total $122.97 $500.00 $75.00 $500.00



GVMC FY 11-12  BUDGET

07/30/2011

Fund: General
Depart: Regional Planning Services

Acct No. Activitiy Prior Year Approved Projected Proposed
Actual Budget Actual Budget

FY 09-10 FY 10-11 FY 10-11 FY 11-12
702.000 Salaries $164,623.49 $165,024.00 $166,007.00 $122,131.00
712.100 Social Security Tax $10,161.66 $10,233.00 $10,292.00 $7,573.00
712.200 Medicare Tax $2,376.55 $2,394.00 $2,407.00 $1,772.00
712.300 State Unemployment Tax $427.31 $522.00 $676.00 $386.00
712.500 Health/Dental Insurance $24,155.52 $26,700.00 $26,219.00 $20,764.00
712.600 Life/Long Term Disb. Ins. $2,155.92 $2,250.00 $2,160.00 $1,665.00
712.800 Pension Plan Expense $14,981.30 $14,855.00 $14,940.00 $10,992.00
726.000 Office Supplies $768.61 $750.00 $425.00 $518.00
726.200 Postage $798.03 $1,000.00 $500.00 $592.00
801.400 Contractual Serv $63,997.20 $1,882.00 $0.00 $0.00
810.000 Meeting Exp $113.11 $500.00 $175.00 $500.00
810.010 Growing Comm. Conf. $7,169.20 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
815.000 Insurance $2,021.83 $2,000.00 $1,900.00 $1,480.00
820.000 Dues and Sub $878.00 $1,000.00 $500.00 $1,000.00
825.000 Professional Dev $35.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
860.000 Mileage $469.87 $1,500.00 $750.00 $1,000.00
900.100 Printing $0.00 $500.00 $0.00 $500.00
920.100 Electricity $898.13 $1,100.00 $1,000.00 $814.00
920.200 Telephone $3,676.00 $3,650.00 $3,500.00 $2,738.00
930.000 Repairs and Maint $546.13 $700.00 $450.00 $407.00
940.100 Equipment Rental $1,243.11 $1,300.00 $900.00 $962.00
940.200 Rent $12,069.99 $14,855.00 $14,695.00 $11,322.00

Total $313,565.96 $252,715.00 $247,496.00 $187,116.00

Fund: General
Depart: SPECIAL SERVICES

Acct No. Activitiy Prior Year Approved Projected Proposed
Actual Budget Actual Budget

FY 09-10 FY 10-11 FY 10-11 FY 11-12
801.022 Other-NPDES $187,751.18 $177,761.00 $200,356.00 $177,761.00
801.048 Other-LGR-Org Wtsd Init $131,025.01 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
801.045 Other-LGR-St Wat Educ $8,344.28 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
801.056 Other-EPA Haz Mat & Pet $11,426.90 $252,100.00 $216,000.00 $78,000.00

Total $338,547.37 $429,861.00 $416,356.00 $255,761.00

Fund: General
Depart:  Strategic Initiatives

Acct No. Activitiy Prior Year Approved Projected Proposed
Actual Budget Actual Budget

FY 09-10 FY 10-11 FY 10-11 FY 11-12
702.000 Salaries $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $42,911.00
712.100 Social Security Tax $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,660.00
712.200 Medicare Tax $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $622.00
712.300 State Unemployment Tax $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $136.00
712.500 Health/Dental Insurance $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $7,296.00
712.600 Life/Long Term Disb. Ins. $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $585.00
712.800 Pension Plan Expense $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,862.00
726.000 Office Supplies $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $182.00
726.200 Postage $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $208.00
815.000 Insurance $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $520.00
920.100 Electricity $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $286.00
920.200 Telephone $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $962.00
930.000 Repairs and Maint $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $143.00
940.100 Equipment Rental $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $338.00
940.200 Rent $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,978.00

Total $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $64,689.00



GVMC FY 11-12  BUDGET

07/30/2011

Fund: LGROW
Depart: Revenues

Prior Year Approved Projected Proposed
Acct No. Activitiy Actual Budget Actual Budget

FY 09-10 FY 10-11 FY 10-11 FY 11-12
581.000 Member Dues $2,385.00 $11,800.00 $9,970.00 $10,175.00
675.000 Contributions $137.43 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Total $2,522.43 $11,800.00 $9,970.00 $10,175.00

Fund: LGROW
Depart: LGROW - Administration

Acct No. Activitiy Prior Year Approved Projected Proposed
Actual Budget Actual Budget

FY 09-10 FY 10-11 FY 10-11 FY 11-12
738.000 Other Supplies 635.25 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
801.400 Contractual Serv $0.00 $8,712.00 $8,712.00 $8,712.00
810.000 Meeting Exp $1,235.50 $1,100.00 $1,175.00 $550.00
900.100 Printing $0.00 $0.00 $95.00 $0.00
955.000 Misc $0.00 $1,988.00 $0.00 $550.00

    
Total $1,870.75 $11,800.00 $9,982.00 $9,812.00

Net Rev. over Exp. $651.68 $0.00 ($12.00) $363.00

stypulad
Typewritten Text
Lower Grand River Organization of Watersheds



1

The Grand Valley Metropolitan Council

FY 2011-2012 Staffing Model for General Administration, Planning and
Strategic Initiatives and Transportation Departments

GENERAL ADMINISTRATION

General Administration activities are funded through general membership dues and the indirect
cost rate (overhead) as stipulated by the federal OMB CircularA-87 policies and principles.

Donald J. Stypula, Executive Director

Chief executive officer and senior administrator.  Responsible for administration of all GVMC
departments, programs and functions and direction of staff. Represents GVMC on myriad boards
and commissions in the Grand Rapids metro area and directs advocacy activities at the Capitol
and state agencies in Lansing and the U.S. Capitol and federal agencies in Washington, D.C.

Leon Branderhorst, Finance and Budget Director

Chief financial officer of GVMC responsible for maintaining financial records of all divisions,
preparing the annual general fund budget, processing invoices, preparing checks, preparing
monthly financial summaries and working with the GVMC Treasurer, Finance Committee and
Executive Director to maintain financial controls.

Gayle McCrath, Director Human Resources and Administration

Responsible for developing and administering all human resources-related services for GVMC
and REGIS; tracks statutes and rules governing human resources issues and works with
Executive Director to maintain compliance with statutes and rules.  Provides day to day
administrative support to Executive Director.  Serves as meeting planner and recording secretary
for Executive Committee, Public Information and Education Committee and GVMC Board.
Provides outreach to local K-12 schools, area ISDs and area colleges and universities.

Michael Brameijer, GVMC System Administrator

Serves as computer network administrator for all GVMC departments.  Manages multi-server
computer network, desktop and laptop computers, printers, VOIP telephone system and related
hardware and software applications.  Coordinates with vendors and maintains information
technology infrastructure for GVMC.



2

GVMC PLANNING AND STRATEGIC INITIATIVES DEPARTMENT

Andrew Bowman, Planning Director

Directs implementation of GVMC’s stratetgic goals and initiatives and manages the
organization’s sustainable land use planning activities and services.  Supervises a two-person
staff, together with the GVSU graduate assistant in implementing GVMC’s strategic goals and
initiatives; works with the Executive Director and staff to identify and address the services neds
of member counties and communities; and supervises the provision of regional land use planning
services. Administers grants for program activities and projects; facilitates public involvement in
sustainable land use planning activities and coordinates grant-funded natural resources
management activities and the work of the Lower Grand River Watershed Council.

Jay Hoekstra, Senior Land Use Planner

Works with Planning Director to coordinate all sustainable land use planning activities in the
Grand Rapids Metropolitan Area.  Works with member communities to develop socio-economic
data, analyze community master plans and provide advice and input into the community planning
process. Provides master plan collection and review services for GVMC Transportation
Department.  Interfaces with consultants and service providers to develop sustainable land use
planning tools. Trained and recognized by the National Charrette Institute as a Certified
Charrette Planner.



3

GVMC TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT

FY 2011-2012 Budget allocations: All Positions 100% Transportation Planning

Abed Itani, Transportation Director

Directs all GVMC-MPO transportation activities and services.  Supervises eight-person
professional staff that provides transportation planning services to the Grand Rapids
metropolitan area.  Works with Executive Director and Finance Director to develop annual
transportation budget.  Responsible for the development of the Council's transportation unified
work program and policies, the Transportation Improvement Program (TIP), the Long Range
Transportation Plan, establishment of project budgets, management of the transportation
department budget. Supervises communications, outreach and project management with MPO-
member communities, counties, MDOT and FHWA.  Works with area Congressional
representatives and U.S. Senators to secure funding for regional transportation projects.

James Snell, Senior Transportation Planner

Serves as senior level transportation planning professional who performs travel demand
modeling and regional multi-modal transportation planning services.  Works with Transportation
Director to coordinate all GVMC transportation services.  Lead transportation planner on
geographic information system-related services and GVMC’s plan to develop an Intelligent
Transportation System for the Grand Rapids metropolitan area. Lead transportation planner on
GVMC’s mobile pavement management system.

Yongqiang (George)Yang, Ph.D., Senior Transportation Planner

Senior level position involved in travel demand modeling, traffic impact studies, travel time
studies, traffic signal optimization, GIS data development and updating and the development and
the updating of transportation management systems. Also assists with the development and
updating of the Long Range Transportation Plan.

Darrell Robinson, Transportation Planner

Coordinates with MDOT and Federal Highway Administration officials on the development of
the regional Transportation Improvement Plan (TIP); lead MPO staff to the asset management
system, helps coordinate the activities of GVMC’s mobile pavement management system;
provides technical assistance to local units of government; and assists with all other activities
associated with GVMC transportation planning activities.

Andrea Dewey, Transportation Planner

Coordinates the development of the Long Range Transportation Plan (LRTP), Non-motorized
Plan, and assists with the Congestion Mitigation/Air Quality activities and other GVMC
transportation department activities such as environmental justice public outreach programs.



4

Michael Zonyk, Senior Transportation Planner

Coordinates traffic count activities and works with MDOT and Federal Highway Administration
officials on the development of the regional transportation safety plan; HPMS; helps coordinate
the GIS activities of GVMC’s mobile pavement management system; provides technical
assistance to local units of government; and assists with all other activities associated with
GVMC transportation planning activities.

Andrea Faber, Transportation Administrator

Serves as department administrator for GVMC Transportation Department.  Provides daily
administrative and secretarial services; coordinates meetings of and serves as recording secretary
for GVMC Technical and Policy Committees.  Works with transportation staff to prepare
documents and meeting packets and assists the Administration Division as needed.

Transportation Interns (2)

Assist GVMC’s senior transportation planners to coordinate the activities of GVMC’s mobile
pavement management system and traffic count program; provide technical assistance to local
units of government; and assist with all other activities associated with GVMC transportation
planning.



GRAND VALLLEY METROPOLITAN COUNCIL

07/18/2011

 1,902

GVMC TRANS
2010  

Townships Population 0.27
Ada 13,142  1,902 1,902 trans
Algoma 9,932 2,682 1,438 4,120 gvmc/trans
Allendale 20,708 5,591 2,741 8,332 gvmc/trans
Alpine 13,336 3,601 1,931 5,532 gvmc/trans
Byron 20,317 5,486 2,941 8,427 gvmc/trans
Caledonia 10,821 2,922 1,566 4,488 gvmc/trans
Cannon 13,336 3,601 1,931 5,532 gvmc/trans
Cascade 17,134 4,626 2,480 7,106 gvmc/trans
Courtland 7,678 2,073 1,111 3,184 gvmc/trans
Gaines 25,146 6,789 3,640 10,429 gvmc/trans
Georgetown 46,985 12,686 6,219 18,905 gvmc/trans
Grand Rapids 16,661 4,498 2,412 6,910 gvmc/trans
Jamestown 7,034 1,899 931 2,830 gvmc/trans
Plainfield 30,952 8,357 4,481 12,838 gvmc/trans
Tallmadge 7,575 2,045 1,003 3,048 gvmc/trans
Sparta 4970 1,342 719 2,061 gvmc/trans

subtotal 265,727 $68,198 $37,446 105,644 $105,644

Cities/Villages gvmc/trans
Cedar Springs 3,509 947 657 1,604 gvmc/trans
East Grand Rapids 10,694 2,887 1,943 4,830 gvmc/trans
Grand Rapids 188,040 50,771 35,861 86,632 gvmc/trans
Grandville 15,378 4,152 4,149 8,301 gvmc/trans
Hudsonville 7,116 1,921 1,651 3,572 gvmc/trans
Kentwood 48,707 13,151 10,153 23,304 gvmc/trans
Lowell 3,783 1,021 815 1,836 gvmc/trans
Rockford 5,719 1,544 1,233 2,777 gvmc/trans
Sparta 4,140 1,118 769 1,887 gvmc/trans
Walker 23,537 6,355 5,967 12,322 gvmc/trans
Wyoming 72,125 19,474 15,757 35,231 gvmc/trans

subtotal 382,748 $103,342 $78,955 182,297  

Totals
 

Non-MPO Members
Belding 5,757 1,554 1,554 gvmc
Coopersville 4,275 1,154 1,154 gvmc
Greenville 8,481 2,290 2,290 gvmc
GVSU 5,000 5,000
Hastings 7,350 1,985 1,985 gvmc
Ionia 11,394 3,076 3,076 gvmc
Middleville 3,319 896 896 gvmc
Wayland 4,079 1,101 1,101 gvmc

sub-non MPO 44,655 $17,057 17,057

Kent County 602,622 63,177 3,000 66,177 gvmc
Ottawa County 89,418 9,165 1,476 10,641 gvmc

692,040 72,342 4,476 76,818

Totals  

Other Transportation
     Members
Kent Co Rd Comm-Urban 35,385 35,385 trans
Kent Co Rd Comm-Rural 5,582 5,582 trans
Ottawa Co Rd Comm-Urban 10,509 10,509 trans
Ottawa Co Rd Comm-Rural 343 343
ITP 14,500 14,500 trans
MDOT 0 0 trans
Kent Co Airport 1,500 1,500 trans

67,819 67,819
Sub

Totals  $260,939 $188,696 $449,635
 



MEMORANDUM

TO: Grand Valley Metropolitan Council

FROM: Donald J. Stypula, Executive Director

DATE: July 31, 2011

RE: Draft Recommendations from the GVMC Task Force on Governance, Structure
and Operations

With authorization from the Executive Committee, I am presenting for your review and comment only
the recommendations of the GVMC Task Force on Governance, Structure and Operations.  These
recommendations were thoroughly reviewed by GVMC General Counsel Jim Brown at Mika, Meyers,
Backett and Jones, who has offered guidance on how to implement the recommendations.

BACKGROUND

Since December, 2010, the GVMC Task Force on Governance, Structure and Operations has been
reviewing GVMC’s current organizational structure and operating procedures toward the goal of
developing – for Executive Committee and full Council consideration – positive changes to GVMC’s
bylaws and operations to improve operational efficiency and bring greater value for GVMC members.
The Task Force recommendations are attached for your review.

The Task Force was chaired by Greenville Mayor Ken Snow and the Vice Chair was Cascade
Township Trustee Cindy Fox. Members included GVMC Chair Jim Buck, Grand Rapids Mayor
George Heartwell, Kent County Administrator Daryl Delabbio, Ottawa County Administrator Al
Vanderberg, Jamestown Township Supervisor Jim Miedema, Rockford City Manager Michael Young
and GVMC at-large board member and Crystal Flash Energy President Tom Fehsenfeld.

The panel thoroughly reviewed GVMC’s founding documents, current organizational structure,
committee assignments and board meeting procedures and debated various changes designed to
improve organizational efficiency and bring greater value for the two counties and 33 local units that
are part of the GVMC family.

Listed below are the draft recommendations from the Task Force, which include changes to the Board
meeting structure and terms of officers, as well as suggested changes to several of the GVMC standing



GVMC FY 2012 General Fund Budget Memo
July 31, 2011
Page 2
__________________

committees. In addition, I have included below each recommendation methods that the GVMC Board
may use for accomplishing the change or modification that were suggested by GVMC General
Counsel Jim Brown.

TASK FORCE RECOMMENDATIONS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1. Business and Work Sessions:  Amend Section 1.2 of the GVMC By-Laws to specify that
Council meetings on even-numbered months shall be designated as “work” sessions, where
Council members discuss and analyze issues. Council meetings conducted in odd-numbered
months shall be designated as formal “business” sessions where Council members formally
vote on issues and business properly before the Council. Council sessions conducted on even-
numbered months would be designated as “Work Sessions,” (Committee of the Whole) where
issues could be discussed in a more detailed manner and recommendations forwarded to the
Board for formal action.  Work sessions would be scheduled for up to two hour time blocks. At
the discretion of the Board Chair, business items, requiring a vote of Council members, may be
brought by the Executive Committee for consideration at designed “work” sessions.  This
meeting schedule shall be maintained for a trial period of 12 months.

IMPLEMENTATION GUIDANCE:

A. Metro Council may adopt, by resolution, a temporary change of policy to allow for
Council “Work” sessions and “Business” sessions for a trial period of one year.

B. If the Council is satisfied that the modified council meeting schedule is advantageous,
the GVMC Board may amend Section 1.2 of the Metro Council Bylaws to provide for
the division of council meetings into work sessions and business sessions.

GVMC OFFICER’S TERMS

2. Term Limits for Council Officers: The Task Force recommends that officers of the Grand
Valley Metro Council, including the Board Chair, the Board Vice-Chair, the Secretary, and the
Treasurer will normally serve a maximum of 4 one-year terms for the same position, unless, at
the discretion of the GVMC Board of Directors at the GVMC annual meeting in October,
extended for an additional year.



GVMC FY 2012 General Fund Budget Memo
July 31, 2011
Page 3
__________________

IMPLEMENTATION GUIDANCE:

A. The GVMC Board could vote to amend the GVMC Articles of Incorporation to state
that an officer may not serve more than four consecutive fiscal year terms in the same
position.  However, the GVMC Board could, by separate motion, approve that officer
to serve one additional fiscal year term.  Note than an amendment to the GVMC
Articles requires an affirmative vote on the GVMC Board and approval of the
governing bodies of each participating county, city, township and village.

B. An alternative to an amendment to the Articles would be an amendment to the
Bylaws stating that it is “preferred that officers serve no more than four consecutive
on-year terms in the same position.

AT-LARGE BOARD MEMBERS

3. Term Review for “At-Large” members: The Task Force recommends that the terms of “at-
large” members of the GVMC Board be reviewed by the Human Resources Committee on an
annual basis.  Based on emerging issues and the strategic needs of the Metro Council, the
Human Resources Committee shall identify and interview candidates and make
recommendations to the Board of Directors at the GVMC annual meeting in October.

IMPLEMENTATION GUIDANCE:

A. Since, under the GVMC Articles of Incorporation, at-large Board members serve “at
the pleasure of the Council,” the Human Resources Committee is empowered to
interview and recommend to the GVMC Board candidates for at-large positions on
the Metro Council.

APPROVAL OF TRANSPORTATION-MPO AGENDA ITEMS

4. Transportation-MPO Agenda Items:  The Task Force recommends that transportation-MPO
related business items including the annual Unified Planning Work Program and Budget
(UPWP);  amendments to the UPWP; adoption of the GVMC Long-Range Transportation
Plan; and each new, four-year Transportation Improvement Program be considered by the
Committees and presented for final approval by the GVMC Board of Directors.  The GVMC
Transportation Policy Committee is authorized to review and give final approval to routine
amendments and administrative adjustments to the Transportation Improvement Program (TIP)



GVMC FY 2012 General Fund Budget Memo
July 31, 2011
Page 4
__________________

and to routine amendments and administrative adjustments to the Long-Range Transportation
Plan.

IMPLEMENTATION GUIDANCE:

A. The GVMC Board could vote to approve this recommendation as a policy of the
Metro Council by adopting a resolution that includes the specific preferred
procedures for approving GVMC Transportation-MPO action items.

COMMITTEE STRUCTURE

5. Consolidation and Retasking of Committees:  The Task Force recommends that the existing
GVMC Personnel and Nominating Committees be combined into a new committee to be
known as the GVMC Standing Committee on Human Resources.

Further, the Task Force Recommends that the existing GVMC Regional Cooperation
Committee be renamed the GVMC Emerging Issues Committee to correspond with one of the
central initiatives of the GVMC Strategic Plan.

IMPLEMENTATION GUIDANCE:

A. Adoption of a resolution by the GVMC Board establishing the revised committee
structure for the Metro Council.

COMMITTEE DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

6. Committee Duties:  The Task Force recommends that each standing committee of the Metro
Council be assigned specific duties and responsibilities, subject to modification by the GVMC
Board of Directors.  The listing of GVMC Standing Committees, together with the duties and
responsibilities for each committee as recommended by the Task Force, is attached.

IMPLEMENTATION GUIDANCE:

B. Adoption of a resolution by the GVMC Board establishing the revised duties and
responsibilities of the Metro Council’s standing committees.



GVMC FY 2012 General Fund Budget Memo
July 31, 2011
Page 5
__________________

At our Board meeting on Thursday, I will briefly walk through these recommendations and seek your
input and suggestions.  If you are comfortable with the directions suggested by the Task Force, I will
prepare the necessary implementation resolutions and bring those for your consideration at our
September 1 Board meeting.

If you have any thoughts, comments, questions or suggestions, or if I can be of further assistance, you
can reach me anytime on my cell phone at 616-450-4217, in the office at 776-7604, at home at
2573372 or via email at stypulad@gvmc.org.



1

Grand Valley Metropolitan Council (GVMC Board of Directors)

Authorization: 1989 P.A. 292 (MCL 124.651) – the Metropolitan Councils Act; Article VIII,
GVMC Articles of Incorporation.

Officers: Chairperson and Vice Chairperson:  (MCL 124.655; Articles of Incorporation,
Article XI; GVMC By-Laws, Section 3) elected at the first meeting following
the start of the fiscal year (October).  May be removed by a 2/3 vote of the
Council.

Secretary and Treasurer:  (MCL 124.655; Articles of Incorporation, Article
XI; GVMC By-Laws, Section 3) The Secretary and Treasurer are not required
to be members of the Council.

Membership: Each public corporation may appoint members to the Council under the
following formula:  Population of 0-50,000 – One member; Population of
50,000-99,999 – Two members; Population greater than 100,000 – Three
members (Articles of Incorporation – Article VIII). Each member serves a
two-year term, coinciding with the Council’s fiscal year.

“At-Large” members (Articles of Incorporation, Article VIII).  The Council
may select up to one at-large member, who shall have one vote, for every 10
governmental units participating in the Council.

Weighted
Voting: The number of members representing a participating unit of government shall

have one vote for each $1,000 or fraction thereof of the total amount of the
unit’s annual membership fee.

Meeting
Frequency: Once per month as stipulated in Articles of Incorporation Article IX and By-

Laws Section 1.2.

Task Force Recommendations:

1. Business and Work Sessions:  Amend Section 1.2 of the GVMC By-Laws to specify that
Council meetings on even-numbered months shall be designated as “work” sessions, where
Council members discuss and analyze issues. Council meetings conducted in odd-numbered
months shall be designated as formal “business” sessions where Council members formally
vote on issues and business properly before the Council. Council sessions conducted on
even-numbered months would be designated as “Work Sessions,” (Committee of the Whole)
where issues could be discussed in a more detailed manner and recommendations forwarded
to the Board for formal action. Work sessions would be scheduled for up to two hour time
blocks. At the discretion of the Board Chair, business items, requiring a vote of Council
members, may be brought by the Executive Committee for consideration at designed “work”
sessions. This meeting schedule shall be maintained for a trial period of 12 months.



2

Grand Valley Metropolitan Council Standing Committees
Executive Committee

Authorization: Article XIII, GVMC Articles of Incorporation.  Section IV of the GVMC By-
Laws

Membership: Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, Secretary, Treasurer and Executive Director
(non-voting member), and up to that number of other Members of the
Metropolitan Council so that the total number of Executive Committee
members will equal in number up to one-third (1/3) of the total number of
County and Local Units in the Council.

Members of the Executive Committee are selected by the Metropolitan
Council at its annual meeting in October.

Meeting
Frequency: Currently meets once per month by historic practice.   GVMC By-Laws

Section 4.1 specifies that the Executive Committee shall meet upon the call of
the Chairperson or Vice Chairperson with 24 hours notice “except in
emergency situations.”

Draft Committee Duties and Responsibilities

1. Provide guidance and direction to management to improve the GVMC’s operations and
scope of services provided to members.

2. Review, approve and recommend to the Board of Directors the annual budgets for
GVMC, the REGIS Agency and other GVMC agencies, budget amendments and
quarterly financial statements, the contract with an outside financial auditing firm, and
other financial matters that have been recommended by management and approved by
the GVMC Finance Committee.

3. Review, approve and recommend to the Board of Directors the policies of the GVMC,
consistent with the GVMC Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws.

4. Receive and review the executive director’s annual  performance evaluation completed
by the Human Resources committee and recommend further action to the GVMC
Board, including salary adjustments, termination or other actions.

5. Develop, discuss and recommend to the Board of Directors strategic objectives for
GVMC designed to help GVMC-member counties and communities manage challenges
and take advantage of opportunities.



3

6. Ensure that the Executive Director and staff are developing strategies, tactics, and
accountability mechanisms for achieving GVMC’s strategic objectives; track
performance and report to the GVMC Board on a bi-monthly basis.

7. Make formal recommendations to the GVMC Board regarding updates to the GVMC
Strategic Plan.

8. Develop and recommend to the GVMC Board topics for the Board to discuss, analyze
and develop strategies for addressing during the Board Work Sessions scheduled for
odd-numbered months of the year.

9. Work with the Executive Director and staff to develop periodic training and educational
opportunities for GVMC Board members that bring added value for GVMC
membership.

10. Perform all other duties and assume all other responsibilities as may be required by law
or by the direction of the GVMC Board of Directors.



4

Grand Valley Metropolitan Council Standing Committees
Finance Committee

Authorization: Article XV, GVMC Articles of Incorporation.  Section V of the GVMC By-
Laws.

Membership: Members of the Finance Committee, appointed by the GVMC Board Chair,
include the GVMC Treasurer and other individuals with the background,
talent, knowledge and skill sets to thoroughly understand public corporation
finance, budgeting protocols and financial management techniques.

Meeting
Frequency: Quarterly schedule with a special meeting in the spring of each year to review

and approve the Transportation-MPO budget.

Draft Committee Duties and Responsibilities

1. Periodically review the financial status of the GVMC, the REGIS Agency and other
GVMC agencies and make recommendations to the Executive Committee and the
Board to improve the financial performance of the Council.

2. Review, approve and recommend to the Executive Committee and the Board of
Directors the annual budgets for GVMC, the REGIS Agency and other GVMC
agencies, budget amendments, quarterly financial statements, and other financial
matters that have been recommended by management.

3. Recommend to the Executive Committee, annually, the hiring of a financial auditing
firm and periodically review the performance of that firm.

4. Review, approve and forward to the Executive Committee and the Board of Directors
the GVMC,  the REGIS Agency, and other GVMC Agencies annual financial audits.

5. Perform all other duties and assume all other responsibilities as directed by the GVMC
Executive Committee and Board.



5

Grand Valley Metropolitan Council Standing Committees
Legislative Committee

Authorization: Article XV, GVMC Articles of Incorporation.  Section V of the GVMC By-
Laws.

Membership: Members of the Legislative Committee, appointed by the GVMC Board
Chair, are county and local officials with background in and knowledge of the
policy making activities at the State Capitol in Lansing and the U.S. Capitol in
Washington.  They are experienced in issues advocacy and possess the skills
to thoroughly understand creation of public policy in a political environment.

Meeting
Frequency: One per month, with special meetings scheduled as needed.

Draft Committee Duties and Responsibilities

1. Develop, discuss and recommend to the Executive Committee and the GVMC Board
legislative policy priorities for the Council to pursue during each two-year legislative
session.

2. Oversee GVMC’s legislative advocacy activities and provide direction to management
and staff on GVMC’s advocacy positions and approaches.

3. Review legislation, bill amendments, position papers and state and federal
administrative rules and regulations, make recommendations to the GVMC Executive
Committee and Board, and report – via a scorecard matrix on a quarterly basis – the
status of GVMC Board Legislative Priorities.

4. Meet with legislators and their staffs and participate, as needed, in the legislative
activities of GVMC, the Michigan Municipal League, the Michigan Townships
Association, the Michigan Association of Counties, the Michigan Municipal Finance
Officers Association and other groups.

5. Perform all other duties and assume all other responsibilities as directed by the GVMC
Executive Committee and Board.



6

Grand Valley Metropolitan Council Standing Committees
Human Resources Committee

(NEW- combines existing Personnel and Nominating Committees)

Authorization: Article XV, GVMC Articles of Incorporation.  Section V of the GVMC By-
Laws.

Membership: Members of the Human Resources Committee, appointed by the GVMC
Board Chair, are county and local officials with an interest in reviewing and
making recommendations regarding the annual performance of the Executive
Director; and reviewing the qualifications of members interested in serving as
officers of the GVMC and individuals in the private sector interested in
serving as “At-Large” members of the GVMC Board.

Meeting
Frequency: At least once per year, prior to the annual meeting in October; periodically as

required to review and make recommendations on the Executive Director’s
performance and to recommend individuals to serve in vacant positions for
Officers and At-Large Board members.

Draft Committee Duties and Responsibilities

1. On an annual schedule, review the performance of the GVMC Executive Director,
offer advice and coaching to improve the performance of the Executive Director and
recommend further action to the GVMC Executive Committee and Board, including
salary adjustments, termination or other actions changes in the Executive Director’s
compensation.

2. At times when the Executive Director’s position is vacated, work jointly with the
Executive Committee to identify and interview  qualified candidates for the Executive
Director position and make a formal recommendation to the Board a candidate to serve
as Executive Director of the GVMC.

3. Periodically review and recommend amendments to the GVMC Personnel Policies and
Procedures together with position descriptions and the wage and benefit structure for
GVMC employees.

4. On an annual schedule, recommend to the GVMC Board a slate of candidates to serve
on the Executive Committee and as officers of the GVMC Board for the fiscal year.

5. Work with current and new Board members to familiarize them with GVMC
operations, member services and the roles and responsibilities of the Board and the
GVMC Committees.



7

6. Based on emerging issues and the strategic needs of the Metro Council, identify,
interview and recommend to the GVMC Executive Committee and Board candidates to
serve as At-Large members of the Grand Valley Metro Council.

7. Perform all other duties and assume all other responsibilities as directed by the GVMC
Executive Committee and Board.



8

Grand Valley Metropolitan Council Standing Committees
Emerging Issues Committee (formerly Regional Cooperation Committee)

Authorization: Article XV, GVMC Articles of Incorporation.  Section V of the GVMC By-
Laws.

Membership: Members of the Emerging Issues Committee include all members – public
officials as well as At-Large members – of the GVMC Board of Directors
who are interested in meeting on a periodic basis to discuss issues of regional
significance.

Meeting
Frequency: As need to discuss and make recommendations on challenges, opportunities

and issues facing GVMC-member counties and communities.

Draft Committee Duties and Responsibilities

1. Meet as needed to review and discuss as a “Committee of the Whole” an issue or topic
of regional significance.

2. Discuss region-wide approaches to policy issues and work with GVMC staff to analyze
data and trends and develop position papers on issues and challenges.

3. Make formal recommendations to the GVMC Executive Committee and Board
regarding policy positions for GVMC.

4. Perform all other duties and assume all other responsibilities as directed by the GVMC
Executive Committee and Board.



MEMORANDUM

To: Grand Valley Metro Council Board

From: Jim Snell, Senior Transportation Planner

Re: Michigan Street Study Contract

Date: July 25, 2011

As you are aware, the Michigan Street corridor is among the fastest growing
areas in the region if not the State of Michigan.  The investment in this relatively
small area of our region is unprecedented in recent memory.  While this
welcomed investment in the corridor has been, vast the resulting increases in
demand for this already busy corridor have placed a burden on the
transportation system to the point where congestion has become the norm
especially during peak hours.

To address this growing demand GVMC staff working in close cooperation with
planning staff from the City of Grand Rapids have developed a study effort to
determine the proper course of action to improve the flow of people and goods
along the corridor. Over the past several weeks interviews were held with 4
shortlisted firms.  Wilbur Smith Associates was selected as the primary firm for
this effort.

Attached you will find a contract and scope for a study that will provide a plan
for the future transportation needs within the Michigan Street corridor.  The total
cost of the study is $99,994.13.  GVMC has budgeted $80,000 toward the cost of
this effort with the remaining funds coming from the City of Grand Rapids.  The
GVMC portion of this effort was included in the current FY 2011 budget and does
not require any additional contribution from MPO members.  The study will be
completed in 18 months.

Requested Action: Approval to enter into contract with Wilbur Smith Associates
as outlined in the attached contract and scope.



1

GRAND VALLEY METROPOLITAN COUNCIL AGREEMENT FOR
MICHIGAN STREET CORRIDOR STUDY

THIRD PARTY CONTRACT

THIS AGREEMENT dated August 4, 2011, is made between the GRAND VALLEY
METROPOLITAN COUNCIL, Grand Rapids, Michigan 678 Front Ave NW, Suite 200,
Grand Rapids, MI 49504 (the "GVMC") and Wilbur Smith Associates, Inc. (the
"CONSULTANT").

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, the GVMC is interested in obtaining services for the purpose of
conducting a Corridor Improvement Study on the Michigan Street Corridor and;

WHEREAS, the Consultant has submitted a Proposal and Cost Estimate
representing that it is both interested and qualified to perform such services; and

WHEREAS, based on the recommendations of GVMC staff, Grand Rapids Planning
Dept staff and the Michigan Street Steering Committee, the Consultant has been
selected to provide such services as of the date of the signing of this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Consultant and GVMC staff have composed a description of the
work to be accomplished, schedule of work, and arrangement of review meetings,
hereinafter referred to as the “Scope of Services”;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the respective covenants contained herein,
the parties agree as follows:

ARTICLE I
AGREEMENT AND TERM

1.1 The Agreement.  This Agreement shall incorporate and include all of the
following, as specifically identified or attached to this Agreement:

(a) The Scope of Services except as the same is inconsistent with this
Agreement.

(b) All provisions required by law to be part of this Agreement.
(c) All applicable provisions stated in MDOT Master Agreement # 2009-

0473

1.2 Term.  This Agreement shall commence upon execution by the parties and
shall remain in effect until December 31, 2012, unless extended by execution of a
written amendment to this Agreement in accordance with paragraph 6.1 of this
Agreement.

1.3 Service Description Perform the planning tasks set forth by the Michigan
Street Corridor Study Steering Team as directed by the designated Grand Rapids
Planning Department staff person.  Work performed by the CONSULTANT to be
hereinafter referred to as the “SERVICES”.  The SERVICES will be initiated through
instructions to proceed issued by GVMC as funding is appropriated.



2

1.4 Notice to Proceed The notice to proceed letter will contain information
regarding which elements of the scope of work shall be completed during the project.
The consultant shall not incur chargeable project costs for the project prior to receipt of
the letter to proceed from GVMC.

ARTICLE II
CONSULTANTS' SERVICES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

2.1 General Scope of Services/Work. Consultant will conduct a study to
determine the best solutions to a variety of transportation issues within the Michigan
Street Corridor.  For specific requirements and expectations see Exhibit "A" and Exhibit
“B”.

2.2 Complete Schedule.  This Agreement incorporates by reference the
schedules contained in Scope of Services.

2.3 Personnel.  Consultant agrees that the personnel listed in the Scope of
Services shall perform the services as designated in the Scope of Services.  In the
event that any of the listed individuals becomes unavailable, any subsequent
replacement must be approved by GVMC.

2.4 Project Manager.  Consultant shall assign one of its employees to act as
Project Manager.  The Project Manager shall be in charge of performance of this
Agreement to the extent required to ensure that the Project is timely and properly
conducted.

2.5 Progress Reports.  Consultant shall submit to GVMC a monthly progress
report including the following information:

(a) Work accomplished during the reporting period.
(b) Work to be accomplished during the subsequent reporting period.
(c) Problems to be brought to the attention of GVMC.

2.6 Performance.  Consultant shall perform the Project in accordance with
generally accepted professional standards and shall use best efforts to comply with all
applicable laws, ordinances, and codes of the United States, the State of Michigan, and
local government(s) in the area in which the Project is performed.  Performance shall
begin as of the date that Consultant receives a Notice to Proceed and a signed copy of
this Agreement.

2.7 Completion.  Consultant shall complete all reports, documents, and all other
Project work in accordance with the schedule set forth in Scope of Services and within
the cost set forth in Article III of this Agreement.

2.8 Progress Inspections.  Consultant shall permit representatives of GVMC to
review the progress of the Project and review all Project work at any reasonable time.



3

Such a review is for the exclusive use of the GVMC and is not intended to relieve or
negate any of Consultant's obligations and duties under this Agreement.

2.9 Ownership of Documents.  All materials produced in connection with the
project including, but not limited to, maps, studies, evaluations, reports, and all other
documents shall be delivered to and become the property of the GVMC upon receipt.

ARTICLE III
COMPENSATION

3.1 Payments. Pay the CONSULTANT for SERVICES after receipt of billings,
subject to verifications of progress. Payments will be made on an actual cost plus final
fee basis, for an amount not to exceed $99,994.13, of which $4,070.19 is the fixed fee.
Compensation will be made in accordance with the cost presented in Exhibit A.
Funding is contingent upon GVMC appropriation.  The SERVICES will be initiated
through instructions to proceed issued by GVMC as funding is appropriated. If sufficient
funding is not appropriated, the SERVICES will not be initiated.

3.2 Project Billings. The Consultant agrees that the costs reported to GVMC for
this contract will represent only those items that are properly chargeable in accordance
with this Contract.  The Consultant also certifies that it has read the contract terms and
has made itself aware of the applicable laws, regulations, and terms of this Contract that
apply to the reporting of costs incurred under the terms of this Contract.
The Consultant shall submit project billings no more frequently than monthly and they
shall contain the following information.

(a) A description of the work items accomplished during the period.
(b) A list of the hours of each person used during the period.
(c) An invoice based on the cost of services plus the agreed fixed fee.

3.3 Time of Payment.  Periodic progress payments shall be made to Consultant
in accordance with Paragraph 3.1 in the amount of Consultant's billings and progress
reports, providing that Consultant is complying with its obligations pursuant to this
Agreement, in accordance with a schedule agreed upon between the parties.

3.4 Disallowed Billing Items.  In the event that any billing items are not allowed by
the GVMC, the GVMC shall notify Consultant of such finding, in writing, within 15 days
after submission.  Such notification shall include a full explanation of the amounts and
the reason for disallowance, including any corrective measures that may be taken by
Consultant.

3.5 Additional Services.  When work is required other than work provided for in
this Agreement, the performance of and payment for such work shall require submission
of a proposal and the execution of a written amendment prior to commencing the extra
work.  GVMC shall not be responsible to pay and Consultant shall not be entitled to
receive compensation for any additional services if such services were required due to



4

the fault of Consultant or Consultant's failure to perform in accordance with the terms of
this Agreement.

3.6 Audits.  The Consultant shall retain and allow access to all data and records
pertaining to this contract until three (3) years after the final payment.

ARTICLE IV
INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE

4.1 Indemnification.  The Consultant shall indemnify, defend and save the GVMC,
its officers, agents, and employees, harmless from and against all costs and losses, and
all claims, demands, suits, actions, payments and judgments arising from personal
injuries, property damage, bodily injury, or otherwise, brought or recovered against the
GVMC to the extent caused by any negligent act or omission of the Consultant, its
agents, servants, or employees, in performance or nonperformance of the work,
including any and all expense, legal or otherwise, incurred by the GVMC, or its
representatives, in the defense of any claim or suit.

4.2 Insurance.  The Consultant shall acquire, continuously maintain during the
period in which the Consultant is performing services and provide the GVMC with
acceptable proof of the following types and amounts of insurance coverage:

(a) Statutory workers compensation insurance.
(b) Comprehensive general liability insurance:  with separate limits of not

less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and $500,000 per
accident for property damage, or with a combined single limit against
both bodily injury and property damage of not less than $1,000,000 per
occurrence.  This coverage shall include a contractual liability
endorsement.

(c) Comprehensive owned and non-owned automobile liability insurance:
with the same minimum limits of coverage as that required for the
comprehensive general liability insurance.

The GVMC shall be named as additional insured by endorsement to the comprehensive
general liability policy.  Certificates of insurance evidencing that the Consultant has
secured all of the foregoing insurance must be provided to the GVMC.  A minimum of
sixty (60) days notice to the GVMC prior to the cancellation of, or change in, any such
insurance shall be endorsed on each policy and noted on each certificate.

ARTICLE V
GVMC RESPONSIBILITIES

5.1 Project Administration.  The Project shall be administered through the GVMC
and its employees through agreement with the Michigan Department of Transportation.

5.2 Project Representative.  The GVMC shall designate a representative to act on
GVMC's behalf with respect to the Project.  The representative shall communicate



5

decisions of the GVMC in a timely manner pertaining to any documents or materials
submitted by Consultant to avoid unreasonable delay in the orderly and sequential
progress of Consultant's services.

5.3 The GVMC shall arrange and make required notice of meetings.

ARTICLE VI
AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION

6.1 Amendment.  Any change in scope or character of the Project work, cost, or
compensation, or any extension in the term of this Agreement shall require execution of
a written amendment to this Agreement executed by the parties hereto.

6.2 Changed Conditions.  When delays are caused by circumstances or
conditions beyond the control of Consultant, as determined jointly by the GVMC and the
Consultant, the Consultant may be granted an extension of time by written amendment
for such reasonable period as may be mutually agreed upon between the parties.  Such
extensions shall not operate as a waiver by the GVMC of any of its rights under this
Agreement.

6.3 Termination.  This Agreement may be terminated without cause by the GVMC
prior to the completion of the project services by written notice to Consultant in
accordance with Section 7.6.  The GVMC shall pay the Consultant for completed units
up to the receipt of said notice of termination, in accordance with Article III of this
Agreement.  Upon final payment The GVMC shall receive all work product produced by
the Consultant up to the time of termination.

ARTICLE VII
MISCELLANEOUS

7.1 Severability.  It is the intent of the parties that if any provision of this
Agreement or its application to any person or circumstance shall be adjudged by any
court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, that judgment shall not affect, impair or
invalidate the remainder of this Agreement or its application to other persons or
circumstances, unless so provided by the court or unless the severance of the invalid
provision alters the basic intent of this Agreement, or renders impossible compliance
with any applicable statute or other law.

7.2 Interpretation.  This Agreement shall be governed by and interpreted in
accordance with the laws of the State of Michigan.

7.3 Governing Law.  This contract shall be governed by the laws of the State of
Michigan as set forth in the prime contract.  All terms and conditions included in the
prime contract are incorporated into the subcontract, and in the event of a conflict, the
prime agreement (GVMC Master Agreement with the Michigan Department of
Transportation # 2009 - 0473) will prevail.



6

7.4 Integration.  This Agreement constitutes the complete expression of the
agreement between the parties and there are no other oral or written agreements or
understandings between the parties concerning this Agreement.  This Agreement may
only be modified or amended by a subsequent written agreement executed by the
parties.

7.5 Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement shall be binding on and inure to
the benefit of the GVMC and Consultant, their successors, assigns and legal
representatives.

7.6 Non-Assignability.  This Agreement may not be assigned by the Consultant
without the prior written approval of the GVMC which approval may be withheld for any
reason or for no reason whatsoever.

7.7 Component Parts of this Contract.  This contract consists of this agreement
and the following component parts, which are incorporated by reference and made part
of this contract even if not attached hereto:

(a) Exhibit A – Consultant Proposal
(b) Exhibit B – The Michigan Street Corridor Request for Proposal
(c) Appendix A – Prohibition of Discrimination in State Contracts
(d) Appendix C – GVMC Title VI Assurances
(e) Appendix D – Contract Clauses

7.8 Notices.  All notices to either party shall be in writing and deemed to be
effectively given when sent by first class United States Mail and addressed as follows:

Grand Valley Metropolitan Council:
Mr. Abed Itani
Director of Transportation Division
678 Front Ave. NW Suite 200
Grand Rapids, MI  49504

Wilbur Smith Associates, Inc.
Mr. Todd J. Davis, AICP
Vice President
8164 Executive Drive, Suite A,
Lansing, MI 48917

or to either party at such other address as the parties may designate in writing.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed on
this day of , 2011.



7

Grand Valley Metropolitan Council

_______________________________________________________
Name and Title

______________________
Date

Wilbur Smith Associates, Inc.

________________________________________________________
Name and Title

_______________________
Date



8

Exhibit A – Scope and Cost Breakdown



9



10



11



12



13



14


	GVMC 8-4-2011 Board Agenda and Memo.pdf
	7-2011 Board Minutes.pdf
	GVMC FY 2011 Q-3 Finance Report.pdf
	GVMC FY 2011 Q-3 Finance Report
	FY 2011 Q-3 Balance Sheet

	FY 2011-2012 General Fund Budget Memo.pdf
	GVMC FY 2012 General Fund Budget.pdf
	FY 2012 Adjusted Budet
	1-2-3 - 2011-2012 LGROW BUDGET

	FY 2012 GVMC General Fund Staffing Model.pdf
	GVMC Dues FY 2012.pdf
	Task Force Recommendaions Memo.pdf
	7-31-11 Task Force  Recommendations- Committees.pdf
	Michigan Street Study Contract.pdf
	Michigan Street Contract.pdf
	Michigan Street Study Contract - Draft.pdf


